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AGENDA  
 

1.  Call to Order  
Chairman Dawn Gibbons called the meeting to order at  9:30 a.m.  
 

2.  Roll Call  
Present in Las Vegas: Chairman Dawn Gibbons, Commissioner George Assad, Commissioner  
David Newton, Deputy Commissioner Jennifer De Rose, Administrative Attorney Mark Liapis, 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock, Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Paul  
Servello,  Chief of Enforcement Jeremy Jones, Deputy Attorney General Louis Csoka.  
 

3.  Pledge of Allegiance  
Compliance Auditor Rene Revens  led a recital of the pledge.  
 

4.  Public Comment  
none  
 

5.  Approval of Agenda  
Applications Manager Liz Babcock requested that Items 14 and 16 be considered separately, 
Deputy Attorney Csoka requested Item 18 be trailed to accommodate legal counsel’s later  
arrival and Items 133 and 148 were corrected to reflect the correct driver permit numbers.  
Approved as modified 3-0  
 

6.  Approval of the Minutes of the  March 21, 2019  Agenda Meeting   
Approved 3-0  
 

7.  Briefings  from the Commissioners  
Commissioner Assad welcomed Paul Servello to the Authority and thanked staff for the Agenda 
preparation; Commissioner Newton  echoed  Commissioner Assad’s comments.    
 

8.  Briefing  from the Deputy Commissioner  
Deputy Commissioner De Rose  welcomed Paul Servello to the financial team  and thanked the 
northern staff for  taking on additional duties in the absence of one of their staff members.  
 
 

9.  Report of Legal Counsel  



Deputy Attorney General Csoka reported  the Toman  matter is  still waiting for a hearing date  
and that he has filed a petition to dismiss the  Desert Cab  matter, and s hould have a hearing in 
3-4 weeks.  
 

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS  
Items 10 through 88, with the exception of Items  14, 16 and 18, were considered collectively.   
Approved 3-0  

 
10.  Citations 20029 and 20030  issued to Mario Herrera Rodriguez for violations of NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706A.280  (GA)  
 
11.  Impound 3458 and  Citation 20671  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  

registered to and Citation 20671 issued to Timothy T. Lee Sr. for violation of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (GA)  

 
12.  Citation 21118  issued to Dale S. Ellsworth for a violation of NRS 706.462(1) (GA)  

Rescind prior approval 3-0  Dale Ellsworth appeared and requested a hearing reset.   
Approved 3-0  
 

13.  Impound 3094 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Emiliano 
Baioni (GA)  

 
14.  Impound 3303 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Nightime  

Entertainment,  LLC/Timothy Rusling (GA)   
Items 14 and 16 were considered collectively.  James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the  
Respondent and detailed reasoning for his request to reduce the impound fines.  A brief discussion 
ensued. Request for fine reduction denied.  3-0  
 

15.  Impound 3482 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Hertz  
Vehicles,  LLC (GA)   

 
16.  Impound 3548  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Timothy  

Rusling (GA)  
Items 14 and 16 were considered collectively.  James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of the  
Respondent and detailed reasoning for his request to reduce the impound fines. A brief discussion 
ensued. R equest for fine reduction denied. 3-0  
 

17.  Citations 21074 and 21075  issued to Asfaw Taglo for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS  
706A.280 (GA)   

 
18.  Citations 20616, 20617, 20618, 20619, 20620, 20659, 20660, 20790, and  20796  issued to Fast  

Towing, Inc. for violation of  NAC 706.4274, NAC 706.4275, NAC 706.4277, NAC 706.194, 
NAC 706.203, NAC 706.410, NAC 706.311, NAC 706.408, NRS 706.398, and NRS 706.44793 
(GA)   
Tony Abutangelo, Esquire appeared on behalf of the Respondent.  Deputy  Attorney General Louis  
Csoka requested an addition refund check to be issued.  Approved as modified  3-0  
 
 
 

19.  Citation 20958  issued to Aminias Funaki Taukiuvea for violation of NAC 706.3747 (GA)   
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.  Citation 20957  issued to Erik Dwayne  Dillon for  violation of NAC 706.376 and NAC     
706.329 (GA)   

21.  Impound 3613 and  Citation 20623  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  
registered to and Citation 20623 issued to Alfonso Guerrero/Moving  Las Vegas, LLC for violation 
of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (DN)   

22.  Impound 3549 and Citations 20650 and 20850  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  
vehicle registered to and Citations 20650 and 20850 issued to Eduardo L. Lubao for violations of  
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DN)   

23.  Citation 20668  issued to Triple J Tours, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.13775 as amended by  LCB  
R091-18 Sec.16 (2) (4 counts) (DN)   

24.  Impound 3080 and Citation 20956  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  
registered to and Citation 20956 issued to Joel Babich for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS  
706.758 (DN)   

25.  Citation 20961  issued to Whittlesea Taxi for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.51 (DN)   

26.  Impound 3084 and Citation 20962  the impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  
registered to and Citation 20692 issued to Arash Varasteh for  violation of NRS  706.386 (DN)   

27.  Citation 21173  issued to 24/7 Limousines, Ltd. d/b/a 24/7 Limousines for  violation of NAC  
706.229 (1)(b)  (6 counts) and NAC 706.311(1)(a)  (4 counts) (DN)   

28.  Citations 21246 and 21247  issued to Jose Moreno Jr. for violations of NRS 706A.280 and NRS  
706.386 (DN)   

29.  Impound 3592 and Citations 21283 and 21284  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  
vehicle registered to and Citations 21283 and 21284 issued to Kalegzabher Mengstalem for  
violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DN)   

30.  Citation  21303  issued to The  Little Guys, LLC d/b/a Tow Pros for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 
CFR 391.23(a)(2)(c) and NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.31(a)(8)(c)(9)  (DN)   

31.  Impound 3612 and Citation 21531  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle  
registered to and Citation 21531 issued to Samantha J. Aiken for violations of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (DN)   

32.  Citation 21614  issued to 1 Touch Towing, LLC  for a violations of NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.25 
(a)(c) and NAC 706.27473/49 CFR 382.301(a) (DN)   

33.  Impound 3550 and Citations 21651 and 21652  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  
vehicle registered to and Citations 21651 and 21652 issued to Mirabe Dideana for violations of  
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DN)   

34.  Impound 3551 and Citations 21653 and 21654  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a  
vehicle registered to and Citations 21653 and 21654 issued to Demelash Alemu for violations of  
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DN)   



35.  Impound 3459  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Michael  
Schoch (DN)   

 
36.  Impound 3611  The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Jose  

Moreno (DN)  
 
37.  Impound 3564 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to  Belachew  

Tegegn Marku (DN)      
 
38.  Citation 19875  issued to Golden Transportation for violation of NRS 706.398 (4 counts) and NRS  

706.398  
 
39.  Citation 19888  issued to Alpine Auto Service, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.11 (2 

counts)   
 
40.  Citation 20624  issued to Quick and Fair Towing for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 CFR  

391.23(a)(2)(L)(3 counts) and NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.27(a)(d)   
 
41.  Citations 20625 and 21526  issued to Efren Sotelo/Instant Towing for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 

CFR 396.3 (b)(3)  and NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.41  
 
42.  Citation 20646  issued to Souleymanou Bouba for a violation of NAC 706.228  

 
43.  Citation 20647  issued to Osaretin Alvin Uwaifo for violation of NAC 706.360 and NAC 706.228  

 
44.  Citation 20719  issued to Beniyam  Fekade for violation of NAC 706.228   

 
45.  Citation 20720  issued to Muhammad Zahrai  for a violation of NAC 706A.240  

 
46.  Citation 20768  issued to Mulugeta Tiruneh for violation of NRS 706.462  

 
47.  Citation 20769  issued to Tamarah L. Owens  for violation of NRS 706.462(1)   

 
48.  Citation 20771  issued to 24/7 Limousines  Ltd. for violation of NAC 706.203(4)   

 
49.  Citation 20772  issued to Five Star  Limo, LLC  for violation of NAC 706.203(4)   

 
50.  Citation 20773  issued to Celebrity Coaches for violation of NAC 706.203(4)   

 
 

51.  Citation 20774  issued to PCCU, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.25  
 
52.  Citation 20812  issued to All My Sons Moving/Storage of  Las Vegas, Inc. for a violation of NAC  

706.311  
 
53.  Citations 20881 and 20882  issued to Nestor Aguilar for violation of NAC 706.329, NAC  

706.3747 and NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 391.41  
 
54.  Citation 20892  issued to Frank Walsh for violation of NAC 706.2473/49 CFR 382.211 (2 counts)   

 



55.  Citation 20929  issued to Owen’s  Brothers Transfer Company for violation of NAC 706.206(4) (2 
counts) and NAC 706.203  

 
56.  Citation 20930  issued to Yellow Cab of Reno for  violation of NAC 706.3745  

 
57.  Citation 20960  issued to Lloyd Keesee for violation of NAC 706.376.13  

 
58.  Citation 21033  issued to Isabella’s Towing Service for violation of NAC 706.203(4) and NAC  

706.203(5)   
 
59.  Citation 21034  issued to Maria Syed for violation of NRS 706.462(1)   

 
60.  Citation 21035  issued to VIP Vegas  Limousines, LLC for  violation of NAC 706.229(b)   

 
61.  Citation 21067  issued to Mario Peev for violation of NAC 706.228  

 
62.  Citation 21166  issued to High Desert Towing &   Recovery, LLC for violation of NAC 706.203(4)   

 
63.  Citation 21174  issued to Luxury L imousine of  Las Vegas, LLC for violations of NAC  

706.2473/49 CFR 391.23 and NRS 706.463(4)   
 
64.  Citation 21175  issued to B &  B Towing, LLC  for violation of NAC 706.203(4)   

 
65.  Citation 21216  issued to Tomer Saada  for violation of NAC 706.13775 as amended by  LCB  File  

No. R091-18 (Sec. 16.2)   
 
66.  Citation 21217  issued to Annastasha Chambers for violation of NAC 706.13775 as amended by  

LCB  File No. R091-18 (Sec. 16.2)   
 
67.  Citation 21245  issued to Yonathan Lemma Mekonnen for violations of NAC 706.228 and NRS  

706.462  
 
68.  Citation 21248  issued to King Tour  Vegas/ Sebastian Salas for violations of  NRS 706.386 and 

NRS 706.758  
 
69.  Citation 21301  issued to Steven Whitman for violation of NRS 706.462  

 
70.  Citation 21302  issued to Tyrone Cason for violation of NRS 706.462  

 
71.  Citation 21305  issued to Keith Reicher for violation of NRS 706.462  

 
72.  Citation 21306  issued to Richard James for violation of NRS 706.462  

 
73.  Citations 21308 and 21309  issued to Mark Kilen for violation of NRS 706.386, NRS 706.758 and 

NRS 706A.280  
 
74.  Citation 21529  issued to Royal Coach Tours, Inc./Dana Warring for violation of NAC 706.203(4)  

 
75.  Citation 21551  issued to Peter G. Castellanos for  violation of NRS 706.462(1)   

 
76.  Citation 21552  issued to Jeffrey McDonald for violation of NRS 706.462(1)   

http:706.376.13


 
77.  Citation 21554  issued to James C. Layman for violation of NRS 706.462(1)   

 
78.  Citation 21556  issued to Aniko Kalman-Laguana  for violation of NRS 706.462(1)   

 
79.  Citation 21602 issued to JC’s Best Auto Repair, LLC for  violation of NAC 706.203(4)   

 
80.  Citation 21603  issued to USA Towing, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.203(4) and NAC  

706.203(5)   
 
81.  Citation  21606  issued to Berger Transfer  & Storage, Inc. for violation of  NAC 706.203(4)   

 
82.  Citation 21607 and 21620  issued to Black Wolf  Moving Nevada, LLC d/b/a Two Men and a  

Truck for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (2 counts)   
 
83.  Citation 21608  issued to Vegas Heavy Haul, Inc. d/b/a Big V alley Towing f or a violation of NAC  

706.203(4)   
 
84.  Citation 21609  issued to Ewing B ros. Inc. d/b/a Ewing B ros. Auto Body for violation of NAC  

706.203(4)   
 
85.  Citation 21610  issued to SuperShuttle  Las Vegas,  LLC for  violation of NAC 706.203(4)    

 
86.  Citations 21611 and 21612  issued to Commerce  Auto Towing, Inc. for violation of NRS  

706.44793, NAC 706.311 and NAC 706.420  
 
87.  Citation 21613  issued to Eagle Transportation, LLC d/b/a Eagle  Transportation for violation of  

NAC 706.203(5)   
 
88.  Citation 21629 and 21630  issued to Belachew Marku for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS  

706A.280  
 

 
APPLICATIONS  FOR CERTIFICATES OF  PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND  

NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE  
 
89.  Docket 18-07004 The expired temporary discontinuance  granted from January 4, 2019 through  

March 31, 2019, of consent-only tow car services provided by Jose Bautista Moran d/b/a Moran’s  
Towing Service under CPCN 7378 and Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order to Show Cause  
as to why the CPCN should not be  revoked.  Staff investigation concluded.   
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket and indicated  
staff requests an Order to Show Cause. Approved 3-0   
 

90.  Docket 18-09020 The Request to extend temporary  discontinuance from  March 26, 2019 through 
September 1, 2019 of consent  –only tow car services provided by Adventure Towing Co., Inc. under  
CPCN 7356.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support.   Approved 
3-0  
 



   
     

  
    

 
  

 
    

  
    

 
  

 
   

 
  

  
 

    
  

   
  

 
 
    

   
    

 
 

 
    

  
   

  
 

 
  

  
   

  
 

 
 

   
  

  
 

 
   

 

91. Docket 18-10030 The Application of DB & T Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada. 
Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support. Elie 
Thompson appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Additional compliance item: approval from City of 
North Las Vegas for parking – Approved as modified 3-0 

92. Docket 19-01013 The Application of Manuel Jimenez, Jr. d/b/a South Lake Tahoe Towing for a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car 
vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support. 
Additional compliance item: approval from City for parking – Approved as modified 3-0 

93. Docket 19-01028 The Application of Five Star Towing & Transport, Inc. for an expansion of 
operating authority to add non-consent tow granted under CPCN 7389. Staff investigation 
concluded. (DN) 

Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

94. Docket 19-03012 The temporary discontinuance from March 11, 2019 through July 11, 2019, of 
consent-only tow car services provided by Tow 4 Less, LLC d/b/a Tow 4 Less under CPCN 7379. 
Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

95. Docket 19-03014 The temporary discontinuance from March 15, 2019 through September April 
15, 2019, of consent-only tow car services provided by Garabet Maknissian d/b/a Express Towing 
& Roadside Service under CPCN 7256.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 
3-0 

96. Docket 19-03021 The temporary discontinuance from April 1, 2019 through October 1, 2019, of 
consent and non-consent tow car services provided by BWS Group, Inc. d/b/a AP Towing under 
CPCN 7337.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

97. Docket 19-04005 The temporary discontinuance from April 3, 2019 through October 3, 2019, of 
consent –only tow car services provided by Around Town Towing, LLC under CPCN 7302.  
Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

98. Docket 19-04023 The temporary discontinuance from April 16, 2019 through October 16, 2019, 
of consent –only tow car services provided by Rhina Elizabeth Urrutia Padilla d/b/a Six Towing 
under CPCN 7400.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. 
Approved 3-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE 



 
99.  Docket 18-03019 The request of  Las Vegas  Transportation & Tours, LLC to extend their  

compliance period from  April 11, 2019 through July 11, 2019. Staff investigation concluded.   
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support.  Approved  
3-0  
 

100.  Docket 18-09023 The Request to extend temporary discontinuance from April 1, 2019 through 
September 1, 2019 of charter bus services provided by  Las  Vegas Party  Coach, LLC d/b/a ELS  
under CPCN 2178.  Staff investigation concluded.   
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support.  Approved  
3-0  
 

101.  Docket 18-11004  The Application of 360 Transportation d/b/a Vegas 360 Transportation for  a  
certificate to operate as a charter bus service (GA).   
Commissioner Assad summarized the application and indicated he was not in support.   Surafell  
Habtemariam  appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  A brief discussion ensued.  Denied 2-1 
Commissioner Newton opposed  
  

102.  Docket 18-11007 The Application of Vegas  Bus Lines, LLC for a certificate of public convenience  
and necessity  to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff investigation 
concluded. (DN)   
Commissioner Newton summarized the application and indicated he was in support.   Rodolfo 
Ching appe ared on behalf of the applicant.  Approved 3-0  
 

103.  Docket 19-04003 The temporary discontinuance  from April 4, 2019 through October 4, 2019, of  
charter bus services provided by Diamond Transportation, Inc. d/b/a Empire Transportation under  
CPCN 2111, Sub 2.  Staff investigation concluded. –    
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. A pproved 
3-0  
 

EXEMPTION REQUESTS  
 
104.   Docket 19-04025 Anthony Spatucci d/b/a Day Go Adventures/ Tahoe Paddle Sports seeks a 

declaration of exemption pursuant to NAC 706.147 from the requirement to obtain a CPCN to 
provide intrastate commercial passenger transportation in Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Anthony Spatucci appeared in Reno.  Applications  Manager Liz Babcock summarized the  
request and indicated staff support. A pproved 3-0  
 
 
 
 
 

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS  
 
105.  Docket 19-03018 The voluntary  cancellation of Danny J. Lopez d/b/a R.L.B. Towing CPCN 7322.   

Staff investigation concluded.  
Applications  Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support.   Approved 
3-0  

 
NAME CHANGES  

 



106.  Docket 18-10021 and 18-10022 The Petitions of Evergreen Trails, Inc. d/b/a Horizon Coach  
Lines  for approval to change their corporate name  to T1 Transportation, Inc. for services provided  
under CPCN’s 2115, Sub 1, and 2016, Sub 3, respectively.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support.   
Approved 3-0  

 
 

NOTICES (NO ACTION REQUIRED)  
 
107.  Docket 19-04029 and 19-04030 The Adoption of the United States Surface Transportation  

Board’s approval of the sale and transfer of the ultimate parent company of  All West Coachlines,  
Inc. CPCN 2113, Sub 1, and Elko, Inc. CPCN 2121, Sub 1, respectively.  Staff investigation  
concluded.  
Applications  Manager Liz Babcock summarized, no action taken.  
 

PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION  
 
108.  Docket 19-03031 Petition for Reconsideration from Walter John Robinson for reconsideration of  

fines on Citation 19839.   
Walter Robinson appeared indicated he is facing financial hardship.   Management Analyst Hope  
DiBartolomeo detailed the debt summary. Motion to Grant Petition and dismiss the citation as the  
Enforcement Officer is no longer with the Agency.  Approved 3-0  
 

109.  Docket 19-04006 Petition for Reconsideration from Abderrahim Mansouri/Atlas  Limo, LLC for  
reconsideration of revocation of driver permit and CPCN 2197 on Citation 20750.  
Abderrahim Mansouri appeared and detailed his request.   Petition denied 3-1 Commissioner  
Newton opposed  
 

110.  Docket 19-04010  Petition for Reconsideration from David Clarke for  reconsideration of fines on 
Citation 18072.  
David Clarke appeared telephonically and stated he is facing financial hardship.   Management  
Analyst Hope DiBartolomeo detailed the debt summary.  Motion to consider the current amount  
owed to be reduced by the remaining balance of $4,871.15, resulting in the account being paid in 
full   Approved 3-0  
 

111.  Docket 19-04020 Petition  for Reconsideration from Asfaw Taglo for reconsideration of fines on 
Impound I-3547.  
Asfaw Taglo did not appear.   Petition denied 3-0  
 

112.  Docket 19-04028 Petition for Reconsideration from Freddrick Ramsey for  reconsideration of fines  
on Citation 19621.  
Freddrick Ramsey appeared and indicated financial hardship. M anagement Analyst Hope  
DiBartolomeo detailed the debt summary.  Motion to consider the current amount owed to be  
reduced by the remaining balance of $4,362.84, resulting in the account being paid in  full 
Approved 3-0  
 

113.  Docket 19-04032 Petition for Reconsideration from David Brinton for  reconsideration of fines on 
Impound 3076.  
David Brinton appeared in Reno and detailed his request. M anagement Analyst Hope  
DiBartolomeo de tailed the debt summary.  Enforcement Officer Truitt detailed the history of the  
Citation/Impound event.  Petition denied 3-0  

http:4,362.84
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114. Docket 19-04035 Petition for Reconsideration from Dedicated Caring Medical Transportation, 
LLC d/b/a DCMT for reconsideration of the Final Order for Docket 17-05016. 
James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of DCMT and detailed his request with regard to 
handling a dismissal and a denial in one motion at the March Agenda. Robert McClay, 
appeared on behalf of Fundamental.  Kelly Frazier, owner of DCMT, appeared telephonically.  
Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esquire and Brent Carson, Esquire appeared on behalf of the 
Intervenors, GMTCare and detailed the reasoning for their response requesting denial of the 
Petition for Reconsideration. A lengthy discussion ensued.  Petition for Reconsideration denied 
3-1 Commissioner Newton opposed 

115. Public Comment 
Robert McClay offered a statement regarding the need in the community for non-emergency 
medical transportation. 

1:15 PM AFTERNOON SESSION 

116. Public Comment 
none 

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS 

117. Docket 18-10012 The Application of Evergreen Trails, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate modification 
for services conducted under CPCN 2016, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 
3-0 

118. Docket 19-02003-B The Application of Cal-Nevada Towing & Transport, Inc. for approval of a 
tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7129, Sub 1. Staff investigation 
concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 
3-0 

119. Docket 19-02023 The Application of Capital Towing, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate modification 
for services conducted under CPCN 7056, Sub 1.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Items 119 and 120 were heard collectively. Alexis Bryant appeared on behalf of Capital Towing. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-
0 

120. Docket 19-02024 The Application of Carson City Towing, Inc. for approval of a tariff rate 
modification for services conducted under CPCN 7036, Sub 1.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Items 119 and 120 were heard collectively.  Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the 
request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-0 

121. Docket 19-03019-A through H The Applications of 
All Points Towing, Inc. CPCN 7053, Sub 1. 
Anderson Towing Service, Inc. d/b/a Anderson Towing Service CPCN 7159 
Capital Towing, Inc. CPCN 7056, Sub 1 
Carson City Towing, Inc. CPCN 7036, Sub 1 
Curtis H. Vahl d/b/a Roadside Rescue CPCN 7252 
J & N Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Silver State Towing of Northern Nevada CPCN 7183, Sub 1 



 
   

  
 

 
 

    
  

 
  

 
 

  
 

      
    

  
 
 

 
 
  

    
 

  
   

 
 
   

   
 

  

   
  

 
  

    
 

 
 

 
 

 
    

  
 

  
     

 

Nevada Towing, Inc. CPCN 7204 
SEM Enterprises, LLC d/b/a City Auto Towing CPCN 7117, Sub 3 

for approval of a tariff rate modification for tow car services.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 3-
0 

122. Docket 19-04026 The Application of All My Sons Moving and Storage of Las Vegas, LLC for 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7183, Sub 1.  Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 
3-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS 

123. Docket 17-02007 The Application of Warren’s Moving, LLC d/b/a Warren’s Moving for a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate as a household goods mover in the State 
of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff does not support 
the application due to numerous financial concerns.  Dixie and Daniel Ardoin appeared on behalf 
of the Applicant and discussed steps that would be taken to address the financial concerns.  Motion 
to continue Interim Authority with quarterly submission of financials Approved 3-0 

124. Docket 18-06006 The Application of High Altitude Services, LLC d/b/a Reno Tahoe Movers for a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity to operate as a household goods mover in the State 
of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (GA) 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated staff support, subject 
to no PLTI’s by May 15, 2019. Nicholas Hebert appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 3-
0 

125. Docket 18-07020 Status Check on the Petition to Deviate from NAC Regulations pursuant to 
NAC 706.1035 for services conducted by Abraham Limousine Services, LLC as manager of 
Western Limousine Service, LLC requesting to utilize ALV employees and vehicles under 
Western’s authority granted under CPCN 1054, Sub 3. Staff investigation concluded.  
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the application and indicated previously 
requested documentation was received today.  Brent Carson, Esquire and JT Moran, Esquire 
appeared.  Approved 3-0 

126. Docket 19-03027 The temporary discontinuance from March 26, 2019 through June 26, 2019 of 
household goods transportation provided by First Choice Movers, LLC d/b/a First Choice Movers 
under CPCN 3365. Staff investigation concluded. 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the request and indicated staff support. Approved 
3-0 

ORDERS TO SHOW CAUSE 

127. Docket 19-02025 Order to Show Cause issued to High Society Bus Company, LLC as to why 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 2240 should not be revoked. Staff investigation 
concluded 
Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized the procedural history of the docket. Order to 
Show Cause hearing Approved 3-0 Rescind prior motion 3-0  CPCN revoked 3-0 



128.  Docket  19-03004 Order to Show Cause issued to Bruno Selmi as to why Certificate of Public  
Convenience and Necessity 3254 should not be revoked.  Staff investigation concluded  
Applications Manager Liz Babcock  summarized the procedural history of the docket.   Order to 
Show  Cause hearing Approved 3-0   Rescind prior motion 3-0    CPCN revoked 3-0  
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
129.  The Authority will discuss the interpretation of “nonconsensual tow” pursuant to NAC 706.4022  

and “tow  at the  request of law enforcement agency” pursuant to NAC 706.4026 as  applied in  
correspondence  from the  Nevada Transportation Authority dated July 22, 2015.   
Camilla Sparks appeared.  Applications Manager Liz Babcock summarized.  Jerry Carnahan, 
Auto Return, stated their agreement with the  stated policies.   
 

APPLICATIONS FOR DRIVER PERMITS  
(Closed sessions may be held for items 130  through 157  to consider character, alleged  
misconduct, professional competence, and physical or  mental health pursuant to NRS 
241.030.)  

 
130.  Permit 8049  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of J.T. Carr for  

issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff  investigation concluded. FTA  
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

131.  Permit 8716  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Marcus  
Weatherspoon for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff investigation  
concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

132.  Permit 9558 The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Jason Groll for  
issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff  investigation concluded. FTA  
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

133.  Permit  9296  9293  The  Authority will determine  whether to grant the application of Ahmad 
Thompson for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff investigation  
concluded. 2006 FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

134.  Permit 9400  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Jose  Luis Cabrera  
Jr. for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

135.  Permit 9401  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Jason Parry for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff investigation  concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

136.  Permit 9402  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Ben Moreno for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff  investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

137.  Permit 9403  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Wade Stewart for 
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.   Staff  investigation concluded. FTA  
Permit  denied 3-0  



 
138.  Permit 8546  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Kristofer  L. Wyatt 

for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

139.  Permit 8715  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Carlos Carrillo for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

140.  Permit 8714  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Michael D. Clark  
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

141.  Permit 8836  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Connor J. Cosgrove  
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

142.  Permit 8838  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Timothy Deangelo  
Wylie  for issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

143.  Permit 8856 The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Jacob Wissar for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

144.  Permit 8860 The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Jose Rocha for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

145.  Permit 4766  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of William Reed for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

146.  Permit 4082  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Timothy Sanderfer  
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

147.  Permit 8864  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Timothy Channel  
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Timothy Channel appeared.  Permit denied 2-1 Commissioner Newton opposed  
 

148.  Permit  9589 9588--- The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of  Lorena  
Morales for issuance of  a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

149.  Permit 8853  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Kenneth Stewart for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Permit denied 3-0  
 

150.  Permit 8859 The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Adam  Levya for  
issuance of a driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  



Permit  denied 3-0  
 

151.  Permit 5415  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Stephen Pelkowski  
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded.  
James Kent, Esquire appeared on behalf of Mr. Pelkowski.  Permit  approved.  
 

152.  Permit 8841  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Victor  Buendia for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

153.  Permit 8857  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Willie Montgomery  
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

154.  Permit 8844  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Warren E. Brown 
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff  investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

155.  Permit 8831  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Romuan Tubbs for  
issuance of a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff  investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

156.  Permit 8845  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Ronell Haliburton 
for issuance of a driver’s  permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 

157.  Permit 8849  The Authority will determine whether to grant the  application of Precious Wilson for  
issuance of  a  driver’s permit pursuant to NRS 706.462.  Staff  investigation concluded. FTA   
Permit  denied 3-0  
 
 
 

158.  Public Comment  
none  
 

159.  Adjournment  
Meeting adjourned at  3:00 p.m.  
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